1980

George Kevin Yost v. State of Utah et al : Brief of Appellant Chris L. Peterson

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE KIND OF CASE

This is an action brought by the plaintiff seeking to recover damages from the State of Utah, Carlos Sacco, d/b/a Sacco's Produce, Quick Stop, Inc., and Chris L. Petersen, for the alleged sale of alcoholic beverages to plaintiff, who was a minor at the time of the accident of the age of 16 years, alleging as the basis of its cause of action, the negligence of these defendants for the sale of alcoholic

beverage to the plaintiff, and an action against the defendant, Steve Hammon, based upon the fact that he was an adult over the age of eighteen (18) at the time of the accident, and was the driver and owner of the motor vehicle wherein Steve Hammon was the host driver, and the plaintiff, George Kevin Yost, was the guest passenger.

DISPOSTION IN LOWER COURT

The Court allowed and granted a Motion for Summary Judgment to Carlo Sacco, d/b/a Sacco's Produce, even though they had sold alcoholic beverages to the respondent, Yost. The Court further granted Judgment as against the defendant, Steve Hammon, the State of Utah, and Chris L. Petersen, finding five percent (5%) negligence on the part of the State of Utah, five percent (5%) negligence on the part of Yost, and thereby providing that Yost could not obtain judgment against the State of Utah; finding eighty percent (80%) comparative negligence as against the driver and adult, Steve Hammon, and finding ten percent (10%) negligence as to the defendant, Chris L. Petersen.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Appellant seeks reversal of the Lower Court's Order and Judgment as to the percent of liability attributed to the appellant Chris L. Petersen, and the percent attributable to

the plaintiff, as well as the other defendants in this action, and for reversal of the Motions for Summary Judgment as against the co-defendant, Sacco's, and for the dismissal in total, as to any liability of Chris L. Petersen, upon the grounds as stated as a defense in the Answer of the plaintiff, and as affirmed in the Affidavit attached that the said defendant and appellant is not the principal party in interest in this action before the Court, and upon the further grounds that the lower court has failed to properly interpret and apply the Utah Comparative Negligence Act.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The only appellant in this action before the Court is the defendant Chris L. Petersen, who while alleged to be the owner of premises operated as "Chris's" made an affirmative denial of any liability or connection with the action before the Court, and no evidence of any kind throughout the entire litigation, and nowhere in the record before the Court is there any evidence or proof that the appellant, Chris L. Petersen, against whom judgment has been rendered, is in fact the owner or operator of the premises wherein the plaintiff is alleged to have purchases alcoholic beverages. There is an Affidavit attached to this Brief in affirmation thereof.

Throughout the Brief, the appellant Chris L. Petersen, will be referred to as "Appellant", while the other co-defendants will be referred to as "Hammon", "Sacco", "Quick Stop", and "State of Utah".

The Respondent (Yost) was sixteen (16) years old on the date of the accident, which occurred on August 31, 1976 (R 106). Hammon, who was the driver of the 1972 Ford three quarter ton truck involved in the accident, and wherein Yost was a passenger, was over eighteen (18) years of age as of the date of the accident, and one Ronald K. Sills, was fifteen (15) years of age at the time of the accident, and is not a party to this action, but was a passenger in the motor vehicle driven by Hammon and wherein Yost was also a passenger at the time of the accident (Dep. at p. 7, R 106).

On the date of the accident, Hammon drove to the public school grounds wherein Yost and Sills made arrangements with Hammon to skip school and to buy alcoholic beverages and drive to Ogden Canyon and into the ski resort areas thereof. (R 107) The three (3) young adults left the school grounds at 12:30 p.m., all three planning a drunken spree and drove to Sacco's in Roy, Utah, and Hammon, together with Yost and Sills, went inside the premises where Hammon purchased 2 six packs of beer without being required to show any identification as to the age of the purchaser, Hammon.

Yost, Sills and Hammon each drank two (2) cans of beer while enroute to the State Liquor Store at Clearfield, Utah. (T244)

Hammon drove his truck into the rear parking lot of the Clearfield State Liquor Store and was able to purchase five (5) one-fifth bottles of wine, without being required to furnish any ID, and after purchasing the wine, exited through the rear of the store. (Dep. at pp. 13 & 14).

The three (3) young adults then went to the drive-in window of Quick Stop, and purchased two (2) six-packs of Coors, at the drive-in window. (T 166).

Hammon acquired two (2) six-packs of beer from Sacco's (T 169); two (2) six-packs of beer from Quick Stop; and five (5) one-fifth bottles of wine from the Clearfield Liquor Store (T 166-168).

They then began their trip to Powder Mountain in Ogden Canyon via the North Ogden Divide. All three (3) of the witnesses, Hammon, Yost and Sills, in their testimony, agreed that all five fifths of the wine and a substantial amount of the beer had been consumed by the time they had driven over the North Ogden Divide, (R 108), and as they continued to drive up to Pine View Dam and into the vicinity of Snow Basin, they continued to drink the remainder of their beer and indulged in taking off their clothes and frolicking (R 108).

The driver Hammon, together with Yost and Sills, then left the Snow Basin area, and drove allegedly to a place of business known as Chris's and purchased a six-pack of beer (Dep. at pp. 20, 22 and 61), and Hammon further stated that each of the three (3) drank only a single can of beer, of the beer purchased from Chris's (T 344).

The accident causing the injury to Yost, Hammon and Sills occurred as the truck driven by Hammon descended from the Powder Mountain Resort. (Dep. at p 23) Hammon testifying that it was a steep grade downhill and that he was driving about 25 to 30 miles an hour and had shifted down to a lower gear so as to require less use of the brakes and that the truck got too close to the edge of the road causing the truck to roll over. (Dep. at pp. 23, 24)

Carol Petersen (who was and is the owner and operator of Chris's (See Affidavit attached) testified that her primary occupation was an RN at St. Benedicts Hospital in the capacity of continuing Educational Co-ordinator, and that she had been a registered nurse for twenty-five (25) years, and held a Bachelor's Degree from the Dee Hospital, and was doing Post-Graduate work in Behavioral Sciences, and had been for seventeen (17) years engaged in the operation of Chris's, and that on the date of the accident, she was in fact operating the premises specifically during the times at

which the three (3) young adults testified that they had purchased beer at Chris's. (T 347, 348) She further stated that she had never seen the plaintiff, nor Hammon, nor Sills in the place of business, and that she would never have sold beer to any one of the three persons. (T 348).

Mrs. Petersen further testified that there is another business nearby that had a drive-in window, and sold beer; and that the premises which she operated did not carry Hamm's beer, as was testified to by the witnesses. (T 355).

The testimony of Hammon was to the effect that he had never before purchased any beer at Chris's (T 39), and the same testimony was elicited from Sill. (Dep. at p.39. T 200)

ARGUMENT

POINT I

APPELLANT, CHRIS L. PETERSEN, WAS NOT A
PRINCIPAL PARTY IN INTEREST.

In answer to the Complaint of the plaintiff and respondent, the appellant, Chris L. Petersen, filed an affirmative defense that he was not a principal party in interest, alleging thereby that he was not the owner nor operator of the premises known as Chris's. (See Affidavit attached)

The appellant did not appear as a witness for any of the parties to this cause of action, and no evidence of any kind was introduced, evidencing the appellant to be an employee, owner, or operator of the business premises, and the appellant further stated as an affirmative defense that the Complaint of the plaintiff did not state a cause of action as against said appellant.

The respondent alleged in its Complaint that Chris L. Petersen was an owner of the premises known as Chris's, but during the course of the trial offered no evidence whatsoever as to the ownership of the premises, nor did the respondent subpoena the appellant as a witness, take depositions, ask interrogatories, or do anything in an affirmative manner to evidence in any way whatsoever, that the appellant, Chris L. Petersen, was the owner, operator, or in any way connected with the business known as Chris's, even though the appellant made an affirmative defense and denial that said appellant was the owner or operator of the premises, or a party in interest in the matter before the Court.

In First National Bank v. Ford, 216 P.691, the Supreme Court of Wyoming stated:

The burden of proof is upon the party asserting the affirmative of an issue, using the latter term in the larger sense and as including any negative proposition which such party might have to show. If he alleges a fact that is

denied, he must establish it. He is the actor, and as such, remains so throughout the case as to the allegations which he makes, or rather must make. Having alleged the truth of a matter in issue, he must prove it. The party denying his allegation cannot have this burden at any time during the trial, for it would be absurd to say that both the plaintiff and defendant have the same burden on the same issue. . . . In other words, the burden of maintaining the affirmative of the issue involved in the action is upon the party alleging the fact which constitutes the issue, and this burden remains throughout the trial. If upon all the facts the case is left in equipoise, the party affirming must fail.

Additional authorities on this issue is Wigmore On Evidence 2d ed. §§ 2483-2490; Chamberlayne On Evidence, § 940; Thayer On Evidence, § 370; Scott v. Wood, 81 Cal. 398, 22 P.871; Sweeney v. Erving, 228 U.S. 233, 33 S.Ct.Rptr. 416.

Wyoming Supreme Court further stated in the First National Bank, supra:

He who has the burden of proof, properly speaking, has imposed on him the obligation to establish the existence of the facts alleged by evidence, and leave sufficient to destroy the equilibrium and overbalance any weight of evidence produced by the other party.

Guild v. Moore, 32 N.Dak. 432, 155 N.W. 44; 67 Wash. 210, 121 P.452.

POINT II

THE LOWER COURT ERRED IN ITS ASSESSMENT OF THE COMPARATIVE NEGLIGENCE OF ALL OF THE PARTIES WHO WERE TORTFEASORS.

The Supreme Court of Utah in Craig Rees v. Albertson's, Inc., 587 P.2d 130 (Nov. 2, 1978), had before it the issue as to whether or not a summary judgment was justified when there was a sale of beer by one party, and other alcoholic beverages by a second party, in determining whether or not one of the parties was negligent in the sale of an alcoholic beverage sold by one, was a proximate cause as against the sale of alcohol by the other party constituting the proximate cause of the intoxication and injury to the plaintiff, both parties having presented expert witnesses wherein one party alleged that there is no evidence to show a casual relationship as between the plaintiff's alleged purchase of beer from the defendant, and the plaintiff's intoxication as against the other alcohol which was consumed by the plaintiff by reason of mixing of the defendant's alcohol with that of another seller of alcoholic beverages. The Court in reply to the position statements of the experts and the allegations made by the appellant and the defendant stated:

That even if it cannot be determined exactly how much of the defendant's beer contributed to his intoxication from the brand names on empty cans in plaintiff's car, it could reasonably be believed that a substantial portion thereof combined with other liquors to cause plaintiff's intoxication, and that defendant

could therefore be deemed to have contributed in causing the accident. . . . Upon this basis it is urged that notwithstanding whatever his own negligence and responsibility may be, under our statute which now permits contribution by joint tort-feasors, the plaintiff is entitled to have a determination made as to his claim of defendant's negligence and responsibility.

The Court further stated:

What is necessary to meet the test of negligence and proximate cause, is that it be reasonably foreseeable, not that the particular accident would occur, but only that there is a likelihood of an occurrence of the same general nature. In that contention, it is to be had in mind that the jury is entitled to base its judgment, not only upon the facts shown, but to indulge such reasonable inferences as may be fairly drawn therefrom. Considered in that light, we think reasonable minds could believe that in selling beer to a minor, such as plaintiff, the defendant should reasonably have foreseen the likelihood of it being combined with an automobile and result in some occurrence such as eventuated here.

In the instant matter before the Court, the trier of facts assessed five percent (5%) of comparative negligence to the State of Utah, by reason of its liquor store selling five (5) one-fifths of wine to Hammon, notwithstanding the fact that the purchaser parked in the parking lot of the liquor store, and entered through its parking lot door from the rear, and existed the same way, after having purchased

the five (5) one-fifths of wine, without the furnishings of an ID. The Court found that the State Liquor Store sold five (5) bottles of wine to Hammon, even though Hammon's appearance would have put anyone on notice who was reasonably observant that he was eighteen (18) years old, and was not in fact twenty-one (21) years of age; found that the boys left the State Liquor Store in the truck after the purchase of the wine; found that the boys did drink all five (5) one-fifths of the wine. (R 137)

It is noted that the Court found only five percent (5%) of comparative negligence for the State Liquor Store having sold such large quantity of alcohol to a person under the age of twenty-one (21) and who obviously had, according to the Court, an appearance of being not of the age of twenty-one (21), was negligent only in an amount of five percent (5%).

Comparing the five percent (5%) negligence of the State Liquor Store for its sale of five fifths of alcohol to the minor, as against the purchase and sale of a single six-pack of beer, as was testified to by Hammon in his deposition, which was taken on November, 1977, for an accident which had occurred on August 31, 1976. (Dep., at pp. 20, 22 and 61). The Court made the finding that Chris L. Petersen had negligent liability of ten percent (10%) or twice the amount of negligence of that of the State Liquor Store.

The Court made a finding in justification of the larger percent as against Petersen, by stating in its Memorandum Decision, that the act of Petersen selling the beer to Hammon was an act of gross negligence, evidencing a total disregard for the consequences, based upon the allegation that because of the location of the premises of Chris's that anyone who sold beer to Hammon, would know that he was in a vehicle and driving, and in a drunken condition at the time the alcohol was sold to Hammon. (R 140-141)

The Court made a finding in its arriving at a conclusion of gross negligence by alleging:

There is a campground in the area, but both the campground and this tavern are well known landmarks in Weber County, and they are separated by some distance. The Court also noticed that this was after school had started in the late summertime or early fall. The Court believes that with any decree of observation at all, anyone who sold the beer to them would know they were in a vehicle and driving. (R 140)

The testimony of the only witnesses who were called upon to give information as to the premises of Chris's, testified that they had never purchased beer there before, and did not testify that the tavern was a well-known landmark in Weber County. (R 140)

If the Court could take judicial notice that Chris's is a well-known landmark, and that people arrive there by motor vehicle, they could also take judicial notice that the

Clearfield State Liquor Store has a large parking area, is not in a heavy urbanized area, and that it does not rely upon foot traffic or the immediate neighbors in the commercial downtown area of Clearfield, for the purchase of its alcoholic beverages, but relies practically totally upon motor vehicle traffic, and that the same allegation that school had started, that it was in the late summertime or early fall, or that anyone with any degree of observation would know that buyer was in a vehicle and driving, would also pertain to the State Liquor Store.

The only actual testimony as to the location of the defendant, Petersen's, business in relation to the traffic and surroundings, was given at time of trial by Mrs. Petersen, as set forth in the following dialogue on examination:

- Q. Let me ask you, are there other people or other establishments in the area close to Chris's that are similarly situated and that also sell beer.
- A. There is one business that has a gas station, a drive-in window, and also sells beer.
- Q. OK, now in connection with your business, are there also people that live in the immediate area that come in that live there on a regular basis, buy purchases and leave?
- A. There is a campground, Anderson's Cove, down the road a ways, and there are trailer in behind the place.

Q. How many trailers are there behind?

A. I think six or eight.

Q. OK, are there also people that come in and camp there for hunting, fishing, this type of thing?

A. That is mostly the type of people we get.

Q. That is mostly the type you get?

A. Yeah, Yes. They can walk over from the camp up to our place.

Q. OK.

A. When they're on boats.

(T 349)

The Lower Court, in its determination of the comparative negligence of all of the parties who are tort-feasors and contributed to the sale of alcohol to the plaintiff, Hammon, as the driver, and to Sill, as the other passenger, did not take into consideration any comparative negligence whatsoever of the two commercial establishments, who sold beer to them even though Hammon testified that he purchased beer at Sacco's, (D 9) which is an isolated service store, existing for the purpose of serving motor vehicle traffic customers. The testimony of Ronald Sill as a passenger, was that there were two (2) six-packs of beer of 12-oz. cans purchased from Sacco's. (T 169) It was further testified by the witnesses, that the three (3) youths drove up to the the

motor service vehicle window of Quick Stop and purchased two (2) six-packs of Coors beer. (T 166)

There was no expert testimony whatsoever as to the effect of the consumption of alcohol purchased from any of the sellers, or the effect on the driver, or the other parties who were passengers of the driver.

The Court, in its granting of its Summary Judgment to Sacco's, stated in its holding:

The Court believes and so holds that in addition to the showing of the sale and contravention of law, the evidence must go beyond to show that the circumstances under which a sale were made, were such that the defendant knew, or under the circumstances should have known, the alcohol sale might subject other persons to an unreasonable or unacceptable risk of injuries.

(R 93)

The Court therefore allowed a Summary Judgment and a dismissal of Sacco's from the suit, without waiting to consider any assessment of comparative negligence as to that defendant, based upon the fact that even though the parties drove up to the premises of a store that catered to the driving public, and purchased two (2) six-packs of beer, and all three (3) of the young persons, including the driver and his two passengers, went inside the store at Sacco's to make the purchase of the six packs of beer together. (T 186) That there could be no distinction as between the sale of

12-oz. cans of beer to the three (3) minors as not being under such circumstances, where the defendant knew or should have known under the circumstances that the sale might subject other persons to an unreasonable or unacceptable risk of injuries, while finding in its holding as against Chris's that the sale of one (1) pack of beer to Hammon, only, was of such circumstances as would justify a ten percent (10%) comparative negligence to Chris's and a zero percent (0%) of negligence to Sacco's.

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