1980

George Kevin Yost v. State of Utah et al : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN DENYING THE STATE'S MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT.

A. THE STATE HAS NOT WAIVED SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY.

This argument is based on the theory that Utah's method of control of liquor is essentially an exercise of its governmental power and that its "monopoly," which admittedly produces income, is incidental to its exercise of police power.

When we deal with liquor law, we find that every state has adopted methods of imposing regulations for the sale and service of liquor and methods of tapping the liquor trade for money for the benefit of the public fisc. Great variations are found in the laws of the states. Perhaps the two extreme positions can be set forth simply. The first position is that liquor is viewed as is any other business, except that high license fees are imposed on wholesales, bottle stores, and retail outlets where liquor is sold

by the drink. In addition, excise taxes are imposed on bottle sales. The other position completely controls the trade by establishing a state monopoly on whole-sale and bottle-sale outlets. The revenues which are generated by licensing and taxation may then take on the form of sales profit.

We might ask what is the reason for the extreme differences in approach? Clearly, it is not a difference in the ability to produce revenue since licenses and excise taxes can be made high enough to produce whatever liquor revenue is desired. The essential difference is that a state monopoly on the trade permits an easier exercise of the police power.

This act shall be deemed an exercise of the police powers of the state for the protection of the public peace, health and morals; to prevent the recurrence of abuse associated with saloons; to eliminate the evils of unlicensed and unlawful manufacture, selling and disposing of alcoholic beverages; and all provisions of this act shall be liberally construed for the attainment of these purposes. Utah Code Annotated, Section 31-1-2. (Emphasis added.)

It should be noted that the declaration of purposes set out in Section 31-1-2 does not seek by this legislation to protect public safety. The Legislature has made a choice to enforce the liquor laws by criminal sanction and by revocation of licenses for violations of the statutes and rules of the commission. For example, criminal penalties are provided for violations; and, for example, Section 32-1-32.4,

Utah Code Annotated, provides for revocation or suspension of licenses. If beer is sold to a minor, Section 32-4-17, Utah Code Annotated provides that in addition to any other penalty, the person's license to sell beer will be revoked or suspended for a period of not less than 30 days. Sections 32-7-13 through 32-7-15.5 and 32-7-24 contain the general criminal sanctions. Even advertising by the commission, manufacturers and package stores is prohibited. It should also be noted that purchase by a minor is a Class B misdemeanor. Section 63-30-3, Utah Code Annotated, makes it clear that sovereign immunity is not waived when a governmental entity is engaged in the exercise and discharge of a governmental function.

It is submitted that as a part of the exercise of its police power, the State chose to make sales of liquor in its own stores to prevent various transactions in liquor by private citizens at various stages of the liquor trade.

In Standiford v. Salt Lake City Corporation, 605 P.2d 1230, this Court split three to two in determining whether a municipality was immune from liability in the operation of a golf course. While vastly different views of legislative intent were apparently held by the members of this Court, it seems evident that the operation of a golf course by a city is a much different thing than the control of liquor by the State of Utah.

The majority opinion defines the test for determining governmental immunity to be "... whether the activity under consideration is of such a unique nature that it can only be performed by a government agency or that it is essential to the core of government." 605 P.2d 1237, emphasis added.

Because the Legislature has so declared, only the State Liquor Control Commission can sell wine. Under the now apparently overruled doctrine of distinguishing governmental activity from proprietary activity, the activity remains governmental because no private interests can legally sell liquor (excluding beer), the activity goes to the core of regulating the sale of liquor, and the production of revenue is incidental since equal revenue could be produced from license fees and excise taxes.

Unless the rule in Frank v. State, 613 P.2d 517, can be extended to this fact situation, the State remains immune whatever the liability of its employee may be for making a sale to the minor (which sale will be discussed more hereafter). In Frank there can be no claim that the act was other than ministerial. A State Liquor Store employee is to do several things in making a sale. He is not to sell liquor to a minor nor to an intoxicated person. Other than that, he is to collect money and ring it up.

The first distinction in this case is that an employee who sells liquor to a minor is guilty of a crime. The imputation of a crime, or criminal liability, to a principal is far different than the imputation of negligent acts or omissions. It is respectfully submitted that the commission of a crime is not "... within the scope of his employment..." within the meaning of Section 63-30-10, Utah Code Annotated, 1953. The writer is hard pressed to believe that the State can legally hire a "state hit man," a "state arsonist" or a "state bootlegger."

Whatever the liability of the salesperson may be, crime cannot be imputed to the sovereign on the theory of respondent superior.

B. THE PLAINTIFF, THE PURCHASER AND THE SELLERS OF LIQUOR ARE IN PARI DELICTO AND RELIEF SHOULD BE DENIED.

A review of the record discloses that the three young men involved in this case deliberately set out to violate the criminal law by purchasing liquor and beer in violation of law. If any of the defendants are liable at all, liability arises from selling liquor or beer to minors who had conspired to make such purchases. The record shows that these minors know the effects of alcohol both by education and experience, and had consumed alcoholic beverages together and had driven with Hammon while he had been drinking

on other occasions.

The usual policy of the law is to deny relief inter se to persons in pari delicto as a matter of public policy.

It might be pointed out that one justification for the public policy determination could be that defendants, in cases such as this one, are required to prove negatives, and that the necessity to assemble proof arises long after the incident which underlies the cause of action.

C. CONSUMPTION, NOT SALE, OF LIQUOR WAS
THE PROXIMATE CAUSE OF THE ACCIDENT.

Utah, with some limitations, has adopted the common law, Section 68-2-1, Utah Code Annotated, 1953. There is no statute which varies the common law rule, which is that in the liquor-related cases, drinking liquor, not selling liquor, is the proximate cause of intoxication.

Utah has not enacted a dramshop act or imposed statutory civil liability upon any seller of liquor for injuries to a third person caused by a customer, although it would appear obvious that the Utah Legislature has had many sessions in which to enact such legislation had it chosen so to do.

No Utah decision exists which has imposed dramshop liability.

a.

Several jurisdictions have judicially imposed liability upon persons who have served liquor to intoxicated customers who subsequently caused injury to third persons.

In Vesley v. Sager, 486 P.2d 151 (Calif., 1971), the Supreme Court of California stated that the traditional common law rule would deny recovery against a vendor of alcoholic beverages for providing drinks to a customer who as a result of intoxication injures a third person upon the ground that furnishing the alcoholic beverage is not the proximate cause of injury, drinking is the proximate cause. In this case, a tavern owner furnished large quantities of alcoholic beverages to the driver from about 10:00 p.m. until 5:15 a.m. the next morning and "... knew that O'Connell was becoming excessively intoxicated and ... was incapable of exercising the same degree of volitional control over his consumption of intoxicants as the average reasonable person, and ... the only route leaving the Buckhorn Lodge was a very steep, winding and narrow mountain road and that O'Connell was going to drive down that road. Nevertheless, Sager continued to serve O'Connell alcoholic drinks past the normal closing time of 2 a.m. ..." 498 P.2d 151, 154.

The Court pointed out that 20 states had abrogated the common law rule by statute but California had not,

nevertheless California had enacted legislation making it a misdemeanor to sell, serve or give an alcoholic beverage to any habitual or common drunkard or any obviously intoxicated person. The purpose of this legislation was to protect the people of the state. The person serving liquor to an intoxicated person should foresee the risk of harm to others. The Court then overruled prior inconsistent cases. The Court did not rule or indicate a ruling as to whether liability would be similarly imposed on a social host who served liquor to a guest.

In 1976, the California Supreme Court, in Bernhard v. Harrah's Club, 546 P.2d 719, held a Nevada tavern liable which had served liquor to intoxicated customers who drove back to California and had an auto-motorcycle accident in which plaintiff was injured. The conflicts of law question was resolved in favor of the forum state even though Nevada does not impose liability under a dramshop theory because Harrah's advertises for California customers, it is foreseeable that intoxicated customers would drive on California roads, and it is illegal to sell an alcoholic beverage to an intoxicated person in Nevada. Thus, the law of the state which should be applied is that of the state whose interest in the public policy expressed in the law would be more significantly impaired.

In Campbell v. Carpenter, 566 P.2d 893 (1977), the Oregon Supreme Court, in a case in which a bartender continued

to serve beer to a customer after she was visibly intoxicated and had reason to know that after becoming intoxicated she would probably drive away in her automobile, held the tavern owner liable for plaintiff's damages. This was the first Oregon case departing from the common law rule, and the reasoning was essentially the same as the California decisions, that the tavern owner's negligence is in failing or refusing to foresee an unreasonable risk of harm to others.

b.

Other states have had the opportunity to adopt a "common law" rule of dramshop liability but have refused so to do. Some, if not most of the courts that have refused to adopt the California-Oregon theory, have done so on the basis that the courts have no proper function in changing the common law, and if a new liability is to be created, this is for the Legislature to determine. Many of the cases also hold that statutes or ordinances declaring it illegal to serve intoxicated people are to regulate business, not to protect the general public. The cases also follow the common law rationale of proximate causation. A comparison has been made that it is illegal to drive while under the influence of alcohol and that this is the statute designed to protect the public from the drunk. A few illustrative cases are set out as examples.

In a 1971 Wyoming case similar to the facts alleged here, Parsons v. Jow, 480 P.2d 396, plaintiff, a minor, sought recovery from the owner of a bar on the theory that the bartender had sold liquor to another minor who had become intoxicated and drove his car into a school building doing injury to the plaintiff who was a minor. It is illegal to sell liquor to a minor, and the employee's negligence was presumed. Nevertheless, the Court stated the absence of common law liability, referred to the dram-shop statutes in some jurisdictions, and held that whether there should be a change of the common law rule was up to the Legislature.

In Thompson v. Bryson, 505 P.2d 572 (1973), the Arizona Supreme Court held that sale of an alcoholic beverage to an intoxicated person does not in and of itself create a civil liability on the dispenser for injuries sustained at the hands of the customer by a third person. In this case, the defendants had served liquor to a customer, Whitmore, previously unknown to them. Whitmore and another customer, Thompson, had been in an argument, and Thompson had slapped Whitmore. One of the owners broke up the altercation, the customers shook hands and continued to drink. Whitmore left, later returned with a shotgun, and killed Thompson. Arizona declares it illegal to serve liquor to an intoxicated or disorderly person or allow him to remain at a licensed premise.

It has no dramshop act or civil damage act. In Collier v. Stamatis, 162 P.2d 125 (1945), the Court had held that the purpose of the statute was to regulate business rather than to enlarge civil liability. The Court noted that California in Vesley v. Sager, supra, had reached a different result. The Court further held that there must be a duty owed to plaintiffs by defendants and that there must also be proximate cause, and an essential element to any liability is foreseeability. It held in these circumstances that foreseeability of Whitmore's conduct was absent, but assuming negligence in selling liquor to Whitmore for his own ingestion, proximate cause could not be established.

In Marchindo v. Roper, 563 P.2d 1160 (1977), the New Mexico Supreme Court considered a case in which the trial court had dismissed plaintiff's claim against a tavern owner who had served liquor to a woman who was allegedly known to defendant as a common drunk and who had a blood-alcohol reading of 0.35% at the time the customer ran down the plaintiff pedestrian. The Court of Appeals overruled Hall v. Budagher, 76 N.M. 591, 417 P.2d 71 (1966), and thus established a "common law dramshop" liability. The Supreme Court determined that the trial court was correct and held that the Legislature should determine whether or not there should be dramshop legislation, not the Court, and that the Legislature had not addressed the issue either affirmatively or

negatively. The Court recognized that the dramshop liability concept has been imposed judicially in many states, and that an equal number of state courts had refused to impose liability. The Court observed, "... being certain that our Legislature must be aware of the many problems of alcohol abuse and will deal with the problem presented here, we are hesitant to act at this time and hope that it will address this issue in the near future, either for or against extending tavern keepers' liability to third persons. We do not, however, feel that it would be improper for the Court to address this issue in the future if the Legislature chooses not to act." 563 P.2d 1160, 1162.

The Nevada Supreme Court in Hamm v. Carson City Nugget, Inc., 450 P.2d 358 (1969), held that civil liability of a tavern keeper who unlawfully sold liquor to a driver should be extended to a third party by a legislative act, if at all, and not by the Court. The Court held that the common law is applicable if not in conflict with constitutional or statutory demands. The common law imposed no dramshop liability, because consumption of liquor, not sale, was the proximate cause of damages. The Court stated that the common law rule had been eroded in recent years and that some courts recognize a cause of action because sale

of liquor initiates a foreseeable chain of events for which the tavern owner may be held liable. The trend has been rejected by other courts. The choice for Nevada (this being a case of first impression) could be supported by case authority either way. It is essentially a public policy choice whether the Court or Legislature should declare the conclusion. The statute making it unlawful to sell drinks to intoxicated customers is to regulate business since a statute imposes some limited civil liability for selling liquor to a minor, and the legislative intent is clear.

It appears clear that when liability has been imposed on a seller of liquor, the seller has been in a position to control consumption.

Since liquor cannot be consumed in a State store, the State employee cannot control consumption.

D. THE SALE OF FIVE FIFTHS OF WINE IS A
WHOLE-SALE, NOT A RETAIL SALE.

Even in states which have imposed dramshop liability, we can find no case in which liability has been imposed on a wholesaler. The only case we have discovered in which a "wholesaler" was liable involved a finding that the wholesaler was actually engaged in retail selling under the Illinois Dramshop Act. In Peterson v. Jack Donelson Sales Co., 281 N.E.2d 753,

4 Ill. App. 3d 792 (1972), the "wholesaler" provided eight one-half barrels of beer for a union picnic in a truck which was set up to chill the beer and serve it. Eight hundred cups and ice were also provided. While the district Court found for the defendant, the decision was reversed, the appellate Court holding that the "wholesaler" set up a dramshop in fact.

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